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REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT) to pay an amount not to exceed
$12,800 to Tri-County Community Action Program (Vendor 177195), Berlin, NH, project # 68057C, to
replace the garage furnace and roof, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2026.
100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this agreement is available in the SFY 2025 budget.

04-96-96-964010-2916

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal

SFY 2025

$12,800

EXPLANATION

NHDOT has approved a request from Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (TCCAP) for Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5339 Bus & Bus Facility Program funding to replace the current
furnace and roof of TCCAP's garage. The roof and fumace have met useful life requirements and are
increasingly incurring repair and maintenance costs; the replacements will support TCCAP's facility
maintenance needs.

TCCAP is a private, non-profit organization that provides rural public transportation, including
transportation for seniors and individuals with disabilities, in the North Country.

NHDOT released a public notice on November 2, 2023, announcing the availability of funding from
the FTA Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities program. NHDOT solicited proposals from public transit
agencies and private non-profit organizations engaged in public transportation services. Seven (7) transit
agencies applied by the December 20, 2023, deadline, and all seven transit agencies were awarded funds
for eligible projects. The transit agencies are Advance Transit, Inc., Manchester Transit Authority,
Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation, University of New Hampshire Wildcat Transit,
Nashua Transit System, Tri-County Community Action Program, and VNA @ HCS.

A project evaluation committee consisting of three Department staff from the Bureau of Rail and Transit
reviewed and scored the submitted 5339 applications. The evaluation committee members included the
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Public Transportation Administrator, Fred Butler, Transportation Specialist, Mike Pouliot, and Transit
Grants Coordinator, Paula Devens. Each reviewer evaluated and scored applications based on the criteria
indicated in the application materials. Every project, aside from Advance Transit's request for a non-
revenue vehicle, met NHDOPs criteria for inclusion in its public transit funding plan and will be
awarded separate amounts for the aforementioned transit systems. The evaluation matrix and scores are
provided below for reference:

1

The applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to
operate service and conduct ongoing maintenance associated with this
capital request.

20%

2

The applicant complies with relevant Federal and state regulations and has
a history of compliance with regulations and reporting requirements. New
applicants must demonstrate sufficient resources for compliance.

20%

3

The applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and
effectiveness, measured in ridership, service miles and hours, costs, and

fare recovery. New applicants must demonstrate the ability to measure
performance and achieve goals.

20%

4

The applicant conveys how this addresses a critical public transportation
need. Applicants need to adequately illustrate how the project will benefit
the agency's transportation program/services, including how it is
necessary for continued and/or improved operations. (As replacement
vehicles/equipment are prioritized, detailed information is especially
important for expansion projects. Vehicle replacements are presumed to
address needs.)

25%

5

The applicant demonstrates involvement in and support for the project,
financial and otherwise, on the part of citizens and local government, e.g.,

letters of support, willing to provide local match above minimum required,
etc. (Vehicle replacements are presumed to have such support.)

15%

Total Scoring 100%

Transit System Score Status

VNA(2).HCS

2 - cutaway 12 pax buses repl. 100% Statewide Purchase and Property Contract

VNA HCS

1 - replacement cutaway 8 pax bus 100% Statewide Purchase and Property Contract

Advance Transit

1 - Gillig electric 35' repl. 100% G&C Agreement (pending)

Advance Transit

Level 3 charger (for Gillig heavy duty)
expansion 92% G&C Agreement (pending)

Advance Transit

I- Electric AlVD non-revenue vehicle

expansion 64% Not Awarded



Advance Transit

Website redesl&n - ITS equipment rep. 82% G&C Agreement (pending)

Advance Transit

Floor Sweeper- Rep). 88% G&C Agreement (pending)

Advance Transit

Parkins lot repair and reseal repl. 84% G&C Agreement (pending)

Advance Transit

Blue Line shelter expansion 90% G&C Agreement (pending)

Advance Transit

2 - Gillig electric heavy-duty 35'repl. N/A G&C Agreement (pending) *

Cooperative Alliance For Seacoast Transportation

3 - minibus 14x3 gas- repl. 100% Transferred for direct administration with FTA

Cooperative Alliance For Seacoast Transportation

2 - cutaway buses 12 pax repl. 100% Transferred for direct administration with FTA

Cooperative Alliance For Seacoast Transportation

4 - 35+ feet 31x2 diesel repl. 100% Transferred for direct administration with FTA

Cooperative Alliance For Seacoast Transportation

3 - cutaway buses 8x2 gas repl. 100% Transferred for direct administration with FTA

Manchester Transit Authority

1 - small cutaway 12x2 gas repl. 89% Transferred for direct administration with FTA

Manchester Transit Authority

1 - maint. service truck repl. 89% Transferred for direct administration with FTA

Nashua Transit System

1 - cutaway 16 pax gas repl. 100% Transferred for direct administration with FTA

Nashua Transit System

12 - bus oyerhaul and rehab repl. 86% Transferred for direct administration with FTA

Tri-County Community Action Program

1 - Facility roof repl. 80% G&C Agreement (pending)

Tri-County Community Action Program

1- Furnace repl. 80% G&C Agreement (pending)

Tri-County Community Action Program

2 • cutaway 8 pax gas repl. 100% Statewide Purchase and Property Contract



University of New Hampshire

3 - transit buses 25+ CNG repl. 100% Transferred for direct administration with FTA

* Previously awarded on G&C Item 59, June 14. 2022, with an end date of June 30, 2024, and pending delivery.

The subject TCCAP project funding is as follows:

SFY 2024

FTA Section 5339 Solicitations

Total

Project

Costs

Federal

FTA 5339

FTA

Percent

Capital

General

Funds

Local

Match

Garage roof replacement $6,000 $4,800 80% $0 $1,200

Furnace replacement $10,000 $8,000 80% $0 $2,000

Total Funding $16,000 $12,800 $0 $3,200

Total Grant Funds $12,800

The total project cost is $16,000 which includes $12,800 (80%) FTA Section 5339 funds and $3,200
(20%) Agency match. This agreement reflects only the Federal portion of the project for a maximum
agreement amount of $ 12,800.

TCCAP will procure the equipment following Federal procurement guidelines, paying the vendor(s)
directly and requesting Federal reimbursement via an approved invoice to the Department.

In the event that Federal Funds are unavailable, additional General Funds will not be requested to support
this program.

This agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution. The NHDOT has
verified that the necessary funds are available. Copies of the fully executed agreement are on file at the
Secretary of State's Office and the Department of Administrative Services Office, and subsequent to
Governor and Council approval will be on file at NHDOT.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

William J. Cass, P.E.

Commissioner

Attachments



Subject: SFY 2024 FTA Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities Program

GRANT AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Idcntitlcation and Definitions.

1.1. Stale Agency Name

NH Department of Transportation

1.2. State Agency Addrcs.s

PC Box-483, 7 Hazen Dr. Concord, NH 03302-0483

1.3. Grantee Name

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

1 .4. Grantee Address

30 Exchange Street. Berlin. NH 03570-1911

1.5 Grantee Phone #

603-752-7001

1 .6. Account Number

04-96-96-964010-2916-072-5

00575

1 .7. Completion Date

June 30, 2026

1 .8. Grant Limitation

S12.800

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency

Fred Butler. Public Transportation Administrator, Bureau
of Rail & Transit

1.10. Slate Agency Telephone Number

603-271-2565

If Grantee i.s a municipality or village district: "By signing this form we certify that we have complied with
any Dublic mcetine requirement for acceptance of this grant, including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

1. 1 1 . Grantee Signature I ^ 1.12. Name & Title ofGranlec Signer 1

Grantee Signature 2 N/A ^
k
•V .

Name & Title of Grantee Signer 2 N/A
\

Grantee Signature 3 N/A Name & Title of Grantee Signer 3 N/A

1.13 State Agency Signaiurc(s) 1.14. Name & Title ofSiarc Agency Signor(s)
t^.< C . <-»_S

Y 15. ApprovalT)y Attorney General (Form. Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: Assistant Atlomcy General, On:

1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On:

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the Stale of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block 1. 1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Grantee identified in
block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly
described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work being hereinafter refcircd to
as "the Project").

Page I of 3
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3. AREA CQVERKI). Hxccpi as otherwise provided for herein, the
Ciramcc shall perform the Project in, und with respect to, the State of New
Hampshire. •••''•■ ' 9.2.

4. EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECr.
4.1. This Agreement, and all obligations of the panics hereunder. shall become

cfl'cctivc on the date on the date of approval of Ihis Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the Slate of New Hampshire if required (blocic 1.16). or upon 9.3.
signature by the Slate Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the EfTectivc Date").

4.2. Ivscept as otherwise speeifically provided herein, the Project, including all reports 9.4,
required by this Agreement, .shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the date in
block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Daic").

5. GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS:
FAVMENT.

5.1. The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C, 9.5.
attached hereto.

5.2. The manner of, and .schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C. 10.
5..3. In accordance with the provisions set fonh in EXHIBIT C. and in consideration

of the satisfactory performance of ibc Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of thc.se general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amount. The Stale shall withhold from the atnount otherwise
payable to the Grunlee under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums required, or
permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N'.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.

5.4. The payment by the Stale of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Oranlcc for all expenses, of whatever nature, incuned by the
Grantee in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete, II.
compensation to the Grantee for the Project, The State shall have no liabilities to M.I.
the Grantee other than the Gram .Amount.

5.5. Notwithstanding anything in ihi.s Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding 1I.1.J
unexpected circumstances. In no event shall the loial of all pajTTients authorized, 1). 1 .2
or actually made, hereunder e.xcecd the Grunt limitation set forth in block 1 ,X of 11 .1 .3
these general provisions. 11.1 .4

6. COMPLLVNCE BY GIG\NTEK Wl l H LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In 11.2.
comicclion with the performance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all
statu{c.s, laws regulatinrLs, und orders of federal, stale, county, or municipal 11.2.1
authorities which .shall impose any obligations or duty upon the Grantee, including
the acquisition of any and all nccc.s.sary permits and RSA 31-95-b.

7. RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.
7.1. Between the Rflcciivc Date and the date seven (7) years uAcr the Completion

Dale, unless otherwise required by the grant lemis or the Agency, the Grantee It.2.2
shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in connection with the
Project, including, but not limii^-d to, cosi.s of administnilion, transporuiiion,
iti.surdDcc, idcpliunc calls, uitd cfoicul luulctiuU and sciviCcS. Such accounts
shall be .supported bv receipts, iiiNmiccs. bills and other similar documents.

7.2. Between the nffeclive Date and ihc date .seven (7) years after the Completion 11.2.3
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant lcrm.s or the Agency pursuant to
subparagraph 7.1, at any lime during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as 11 -2.4
wfteii as llic Slate sliull dciiiuiid, llkc Giunicc shall make avaibblc to the State all
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall 12.
permit the Slate to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits 12.1.
of all contracts, invoices, materials, payroik. records of personnel, data (as that
icnn is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters covered
by this Agreement. A.* u.scd in this paragraph, "Grantee" includes all persons,
natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with, the entity identified as the Orantcc in block 1.3 of these provisions

8. PERSONNEL. 12.2.
8.1. I'hc Grantee ."ihall. at its own e.xpen.sc, provide all personnel necessary to perform

the Project The Grantee warrants tliat oil personnel engaged in the Project shall
be qualified to perfonii such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Project uodcr all applicubie laws. 12.3.

8.2. The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, subgrantcc,
or other person, fi rm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined ciTon
to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual relationship with
the State, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or appointed.

8.3. The Grant Oniccr shall be the representative of the State hereunder. Inlhcevcnl 12.4.
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by (he Grant
Officer, and hi.s/her decision on any dispute, shall be final. 13.

9. DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.
9.1. .As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and things

developed or obtained during the performance of. or acquired or developed by
rcu.son of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, fi le.s,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions. drawing.s, analyses, graphic representations.

computer pnigranis. computer printouts,', notes. letters, memoranda, paper, and
documcnt.s, all whether fi nished or unfinished.- -
Between the liflectivc Date and the'Co'nVpl'eiibn Date the Grantee shall grant to
the Stale, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data for
e.xamination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any other
puqwsc whatsoever.
No data .shall be subject lo copyright in the United States or any other cov >y
anyone other than the Slate.
On and after Ihc EITcciive Date all data, and any property which has been received
from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpo.se under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the Stale, and shall be relumed to the Slate
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
shall fi rst occur.
The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, di.stributc and othcnvise use. in whole or in part, all data.
CONDI I IONAL NATURE OR AGREEhTENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement lo.ihc contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. arc contingent upon
the avatiabilit>' or continued appropriation of funds, und in no event shall the Slate
be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
fiinds. In the event of a reduciiun or termination of those funds, the State shall
have the right lo withhold pa>'mcni until such funds become available, if ever, and
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such Icrminuiion.
EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.
Any one or more of the following acts or omissions ofthc Grantee shall constitute
an event of default hereunder (hereinafter rcfcn-ed to a.s "Evcnis of Default");
Failure to perform the Frojeci satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder: or
Failure lo maintain, or permit access to. the records required hereunder; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and condition.s of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence ofany Event of Default, the Stale may take any one. or more,
or all, of the following actions:
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and requiring it
to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser specification of time,
thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not
timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, efTcctivc two (2) day.s aflcr giving the
Grantee notice of termination; and
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and suspending
all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the portio- he
Gram .Amount which wopid otherwise accrue lo the Grantee during the /d
from the date of .such nifccc until such time 03 the State determines thai the
Grantee has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to the Grantee; and
Set off against any other obligation the Slate may owe to the Grantee any damages
the Staic sufTcrs by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement us breuched and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity,
or both.
TERMINATION.
In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any rco.son other ihun
the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver lo the Grunt Officer, not
later than fi fteen (15) days after the dale of icrminalion, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Rqxirt") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraph.s 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Temiination Report by the Stale shall entitle
the Grantee to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of tenninalion.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the Slate .shall in no
event relieve the Grantee from any and ail liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the Slate as a result of the Grantee's breach of its obligations
hereunder.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or.
except where notice default has been given lo the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee,
may terminate ihis Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the Orantcc,
and no representative, ofllccr or employee of the State of Nes*' Hampshire or of
the governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project is to be
performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or
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K

15.

16.

17.

17.1

17.1. 1

17.1.2

approval of the undertaking or cart>'ing>out of such Project, shall participate in 17.2.
any decision relating to this.AEeemcrit vyhich affects his or her personal interc.st
or the interest of any corporation, paitncrsliip, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor '.^all he or she have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.
GRANTEE'S RKLA I ION TO TKE STATE. In the pcrfonnancc of this
Agreement the Grantee, it.s employees, and any subcontractor or subgrantec of 18.
the Grantee arc in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of Ihe State. . Neither the Grantee nor any of its officers,
employees, agents, members, subcontractors or .subgrantces, shall have authority
to bind the Suuc nor arc they entitled to any of the benefits, workmen's
comiKnsation or emoluments proxHdcd by the Slate to its employees.
ASSIGNMEN'i' AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not a.ssign, or
otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior v.Titien
consent of the Stale. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted'by the Grantee other than as set forth in E.\hibil B without the prior
written consent of the State.

INDEMMKICATION. The Grantee shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the State, its officers.and employees, from and against any and all
losses suffered by the State, its ofTiccrs and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilUics or penalties a.sscned against the Slate, its officers and employees, by
or on behalf of any person, on account of, based on. resuhing front, ari.sing r»ui
of" (or which may be claimed to arise out ol) lite acts or omissions of the Cntnicc
or subconlraclof, or subgrantec or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver
of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity Is hereby reserved to
the Stale. This covenant .shall survive the termination of this agreement,
INSURANCE.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall
require any .subcontractor, subgrantec or assignee performing Project work to
obtain .and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the fotlownng
insurance;

Statutory workers" compensation and employees liability iasurancc for ail
cmployce.s engaged in the pcrfomiaiKC of the Project, and
GencPdl liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less than SI,000,000 per occurrence and 52.000,000
aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and 5500,000 for property
damage in any one incident; and

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

The policies described in siibparagfaph' 17,1 i)fthLs paragraph shall be the standard
fonu employed in the State 9.f Nfw Hampshire, issued by underwriters accqitahic
to the State, and authorixcd to do business in the State of New Hampshire. Grantee
shall ftimish to the Stale, certificaills of insurance for all rcncwal(s) of insurance
required under (his .Agreement no l.ttcr than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions
hereofalter any Kvcnl of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard
to that Kvem, or anysub.sqjuenl Event. No express waivcrofany Kveni of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the Oranicc.
NOTICE. Any notice by a part)- hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the lime of mailing by certified mail, postage
prepaid, in a United Stales Post Office addressed to the panics.at the addr«jsscs
first above given,
AiVlENPMENT. I'his Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instnimcnt in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval ol
such antcndnient, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the State
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND I ERMS. This Agreement shall
be construed in accordance with the law of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inurcss to the benefit of the parlies imd their respective successors
and assignees. 'Ihc captions and contents of the "subject" blank arc u.sed only a.s
a matter of convenience, and arc not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to he used in determining the ioicnd of the panics hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third panics
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, con.s-titulcs the entire
ugreement and undcrsuinding between the panics, and supersedes all prior
agreements and undcrslandiogs relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional or modifying provisions Set forth in
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated us part of this agreement.
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Revised 04/07/2023

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

A,I. Amend G-1 Section 2. "SCOPE OF WORK" by adding the folloAving:

2.1. " The Grantee may change the Project scope, including related services, only with the prior
written agreement of "the State and in accordance with applicable Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) requirements.

A.2. Amend G-1 Section 3. "AREA COVERED" by adding the following:

3.1. Services may extend to adjacent states with prior wTitten approval from the State. The State
reserves the right to require formal cost allocation measures.

A.3. Amend G-1 Section 5. "GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT:
VOUCHERS: PAYMENT" by adding the following:

5.6. The grant amount, as identified in Exhibit C, Budget, represents the net Federal/State
amount(s) to be paid to the Grantee. As applicable, the Grantee shall provide, and document
the availability of, local funds sufficient to meet the project cost in excess of the Grant Price
Limitation.

5.7. The Grantee shall submit a request for payment to the State on a form specified by the State,
together with all information to support the request. Such requests for payment shall be
properly completed and signed. Requests for payments must be for allowable costs only as
defined in 2 CFR Part 200. as amended. No requests for advance payment will be accepted
by the State. '%

T •

5.8. Upon receipt of the request for payment, the State shall review the request to determine the
allowability of costs, in connection with this review, the State may demand production of
(and the Grantee shall produce) and inspect any documents and records described in Section
7.

5.9. Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records
required by the State, the State shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount due
and owing to the Grantee and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions of this
Agreement.

5.10. Final Payment. Satisfactory acceptance by the Slate and FTA of all reports required by this
Agreement is a condition precedent to fmal payment (i.e., payment for the last month or
portion thereof of this Agreement). All reports will be prepared to the satisfaction of the
State and Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The final payment may be retained and
withheld pending receipt and satisfactory acceptance of all reports required by this
Agreement and resolution of all pending matters.

A.4. Amend G-1 Secrion 6. "COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS" by adding the following:

6.1. The Grantee shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for



-  ■; , Revised 04/07/2023

pmpioynient, notices setting forth the provisions oX'the Federal Title VI non-discrimination
requirements.

6.2. The Grantee shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all qualified
applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, age,
creed, sex, or national origin.

6.3. The provisions-of 2 CFR 200, as amended, shall apply to the local administration of this
agreement and any subgrantee.under this agreement.

O ■ 'iT

6.4. In the event of any conflict between the requirements within this Exhibit related to Federal
requirements and Federal Clauses incorporated elsewhere into this Agreement, the Federal
Clauses take precedence.

A.5. Amend G-1 Section 9. "DATA; RETENTrON OF DATA; ACCESS" by adding the
following:

9.6. The following restrictions apply to all subject data tlrst produced in the perfomiancc of this
agreement;

9.6.1 Except for its own internal use, the Grantee may not publish or reproduce such data in
whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Grantee authorize others to
do so, without the written consent of the State, until such time as the FTA may have
cither released or approved the release of such data to the public.

9.6.2 As authorized by 2 CFR 200. as amended, the FTA reserves a royalty-free, non
exclusive, and irrevocable licinse to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and 105
authorize others to use, for Federal purposes, any work developed under a grant, '
cooperative agreement, subgrant, or third party grant, irrespective of whether a
copyright has been obtained: and any rights of copyright to which a recipient, sub-
recipient, or third paity contractor purchases ownership with Federal assistance.

9.7. it is FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the
Grantee understands and agrees that in addition to the ri ghts set forth in 9.6, FTA may make
available to any recipient, subgrantee, grantee, or subgrantee its license in the copyright to
the date derived under this Agreement or a copy of the data first produced under this
Agreement.

9.8. The Grantee shall indemnity, save, and hold harmless the State and United States, their
officers, agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any
liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation of
the proprietary ri ghts, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication,
translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under this
Agreement.

9.9. Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license to the United States under any patent
or be construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right other\vise granted to the
United States under any patent.
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9.10. Sections 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 are not applicable to material furnished to the Grantee by tjie State
or United States and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement; provided that
such incorporated material is identified by the Grantee at the time of delivery of such work.

9.11. In the event that the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under the
project shall become subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the
State or FTA may direct.

A.6. Amend G-1 Section 12. "TERMINATION" by adding the following:

12.5. The terrnination report must be accepted by the State and the Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) prior to final payment.

12.6. Completion of Services; Payment of Price. Excepting those obligations of the Grantee
which, by the terms of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Date, upon the
completion of the Services and upon payment of the Grant Price, this Agreement, and all
obligations of the parties hereunder, shall cease and shall be without recourse to the parties
hereto.

12.8. Tennination for Convenience. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary,
either the State or, except where notice of default has been given to the Grantee hereunder,
the Grantee may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days' written
notice.

A.7. Amend G-1 Section 15. "ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBCONTRACTS" by adding the
following:

15.1. The Grantee|hall cause the provisions of this grant to be inserted in all subgrants for any
work covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each subgrantee.
The Grantee shall take such action with respect to any subgrant as the State may direct as a
means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance. The Grantee
shall ensure that any subgrantee/contractor has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals
required for the performance of grant services.

A.8. Amend G-1 by adding "DEFINITIONS" as Section 25:

25. DEFINITIONS

ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are incurred in the performance of the Services
described in Exhibit B and which satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200, as amended.

EQUIPMENT; An article of nonexpendable, tangible personal having a useful life of more
than one year and an acquisition cost which equals or exceeds the lesser of the capitalization
level established by the governmental unit for financial statement purposes, or $5,000.
Includes rolling stock and all other such property used in the provision of public transit
services.

FTA; U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration

PROJECT APPLICATION: The narrative, charts, figures, and/or maps submitted to the
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State detailing the scope of the public transportation program o,f the Grants modified and
approved by the State.

REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation
services being provided by the Grantee. Revenues also include funds from subgrants,
contracts, purchase of service agreements, and excess matching funds that directly benefit
the transportation service.

SECTION 5339: FTA's Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program of Moving Ahead for
Progress in the 21'^'Century Act (Map-2l) of-20I2, as amended.

STATE: The State of New Hampshire, acting through the Department of Transportation,
Bureau of Rail and Transit.

A.9. Amend G-1 by adding "ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING, AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS" as Section 26:

26. ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING, AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

26.1. Maintenance of Records. The Grantee shall keep and maintain the records, documents,
and accounts described herein for a period of three years after the FTA grant is closed. The
Grantee shall maintain, and make available to the State and FTA, records relating to
complaints and comments received from the public. In the event, the State disputes the
Grantee's operations or records as submitted for payment or otherwise, the final resolution

. . . shall rest with the Stale.

26>2. Audits and Inspections- Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date, and for a
T  period of three (3) years after the FTA grant is cfosed or the date of the resolution of all

matters relating to this Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Grantee's
normal business hours, and as often as the State or FTA may demand, the Grantee shall
make available to the State and FTA or their designees all records pertaining to matters
covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall permit the State and FTA to audit, examine,
and reproduce such records, and to make audits of all contracts, grants, invoices, materials,
payrolls, records of personnel, Data (as defined in G-.1 section 9.1), and other information
relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Grantee"
includes all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common
ownership with, the entity identified as the Grantee in 1.3 of G-1.

26.3. General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS). The Grantee shall generate and keep updated
General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data and submit related data for reporting to the
National Transit Database (NTD) as required. The Grantee shall submit related data to the
Department upon request.

26.3.1 The Bipartisan Infrastructure Law amended 49 U.S.C. 5335 (a) to require the Federal
Transit Administration to collect "geographic service area coverage" data through the
NTD.

A.IO. Amend G-1 by adding "PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY" as Section
27:
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27. PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY. The following terms and
conditions apply to all equipment and real property purchased in whole or in part with funds
provided through this or other Agreements between the State and the Grantee:

27.1. All procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular 4220.1F
and future amendments, and with Buy America requirements, 49 CFR Parts 661 and 663,
as applicable.

"27.2. The Grantee shall ensure that all Contractors comply- with construction materials
requirements set forth in the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (ITJA) Pub. L. No. 1 17-
58 which includes the Build America, Buy America Act (Act) Pub. L No 117-58, div. G §§
70901-17. The Contractor shall purchase construction materials for projects in accordance
with the Act, Federal implementation guidance M-22-11, and other applicable federal laws,
regulations, and guidance.

27.3. As applicable, all vehicles shall be purchased by the State unless the Grantee has received
prior approval from the State to procure vehicles.

27.4. All other equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred ($500) per unit shall be purchased
by the Grantee subject to the prior approval of the State.

27.5. Title to all project equipment shall be in the name of the Grantee; provided, however, that
in order to secure the complete perfonnance of this Agreement, the Grantee shall give the
Slate a security interest in all such equipment at the time of purchase and shall execute
financing statements and do all other acts necessary or useful to the perfection of that
interest an(^, the renewal thereof. In connection with the purchase of any motor vehicles
pursuant toHhis Agreement, the Grantee shall give the State a sccunty interest in the motor
vehicles at the time of purchase and shall take all steps necessary to protect the State's
security interest, including taking steps to identify the State as a lien holder of such motor
vehicles on the motor vehicle titles.

27.6. In the event that this agreement is terminated, all project equipment and property become
the property of the State and it is understood and agreed that legal title to such equipment
shall be transferred to the State as soon as feasible.

\

27.7. Project equipment will be disposed of in accordance with FTA Circular 9040.1G as
amended and the State Management Plan unless written approval is received from the State.

A.11. Amend G-I by adding "EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION" as section 28:

28. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Grantee shall maintain a current inventory listing
of all nonexpendable property involved in this Agreement. The Grantee shall submit to the
State a certification that the equipment is still being used in accordance with the terms of
the Agreement. The inventory listing and equipment certification shall be supplied to the
State by each year, generally by June 30"^.

A.12. Amend G-1 by adding "EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE" as section 29:

29. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. The Grantee shall be responsible for the maintenance
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and repair of all equipment related to this Agreement. The (jjcantee shall maintain all such
equipment at a high level of cleanliness, safety, and mechanical soundness. As applicable,
the Grantee shall certify that a proper maintenance plan that meets or exceeds the original
equipment manufacturer's preventive maintenance guidelines is followed. Vehicle
•maintenance plans must be approved by the Board of Directors. All maintenance, repair,
and physical improvement activities on equipment shall be conducted by the Grantee and at
a location specified by the Grantee. The Grantee shall notify the State of any changes in this
location. The Grantee further agrees to maintain, repair, or make any physical improvement
to equipment as requested by the Slate. The State, FTA, and/or their dcsignees shall have
the right to conduct periodic inspections for the purpose of confimting proper maintenance
and repair.

A.13. Amend G-1 by adding "VEHICLE STOR/VCE" as section 30:

30. VEHFCLE STORAGE. As applicable, with respect to any motor vehicles purchased in
whole or part under this Agreement, or maintained under this Agreement, the Grantee shall
park or garage each vehicle so as to ensure maximum available protection and safety for
each vehicle. The Grantee shall also ensure that each vehicle will be parked or garaged in
such a manner that its daily operations are not impaired or curtailed by conditions ofweather
or any other circumstances. The Grantee shall notify the State of the location of the garaging
site and any relocation.

A.M. Amend G-1 by adding "SAFETY REQUIREMENTS" as section 31:

31. SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. As applicable, all project equipment shall be inspected and
certified by the Department of Safety and shall meet all applicable Federal Motor Vehicle
Safety Standards and Federal Motor Canier S^ety Regulations as required by the United

- ? States Department of Transportation, and by ifie New Hampshire Department oi Safety
under RSA 266:72-a, in the purchase and operation of all project equipment.

31.2. As applicable, the Oramee shall provide the Slate with full, and prompt written
notification of any accident involving any vehicle used in its services. In addition, tlic
Grantee shall be responsible to report any accident in compliance with State law.

31.3. The Grantee shall submit any data/documentation related to FTA's Transit Asset
Management or Public Transportation Agency Safely Plan purposes as required by
NHDOT for compliance purposes.

A.35. Amend G-1 by adding "PATENT RIGHTS" as section 32:

32. PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Grantee is
conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under this grant, which
invention, improvement, or discovery may be patentable under the laws of the United States
or any foreign country, the Grantee shall immediately notify the State and provide a detailed
report. The rights and responsibilities of the Grantee and the State with respect to such
invention, improvement, or discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable
Federal laws, regulations, policies, and any waiver thereof.

A.16. Amend G-1 by adding "BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION" as section 33:
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33. BROKERAGE KEP^SENTATION. The Grantee warrants that it has^not employed or
retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the
Grantee, to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any
company or person, other than a bona-t1de employee working solely for the Grantee, any
fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration, contingent
upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of
this warranty, the State shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability or, in
its discretion to deduct from the Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the
full amount of such fee, commission, percentagCi brokerage, brokerage fee, gift, or

^contingent fee.



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
EXHIBITS

SCOPE OF SERVICES

B.l Capital Purchases

1 .1 The Grantee, Tri-County Coninumity Action Program, Inc. (TCCAP) (hereinafter the
'^Grantee"), will procure the following capital items for use in accordance with
requirements associated with its FTA Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities program
funding within the State:

1.1.1 One (1) roof replacement for the garage located at 31 Pleasant Street, Berlin,
NH. The replacement is an eligible capital expense under Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) guidelines.

1 .1.2 One (1) furnace replacement to be installed in TCCAP's garage located at 31
Pleasant Street, Berlin, NH. The replacement is an eligible capital expense
under Federal Transit Administration (FTA) guidelines.

1.2 Grant funding for all projects will be provided by the Stale as shown in Exhibit C.

1.3 The Grantee will purchase the capital equipment in compliance with all applicable
Federal regulations and guidance including FTA Circular 4220.IF, "Third Party
Contracting Guidance," or the most recent.

1 .4 Prior to any capital procurement, the Grantee shall submit appropriate procurement
documentation demonstrating complianct,^ with Federal procurement requirements,
including FTA Third Part)' Procurement guidelines per FTA Circular 4220.IF or the
most recent, to the State for review and approval. Such documentation may include, but
is not limited to, the following:

1.4.1 Veritication of utilizing NH's Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)
directory to invite a DBE to vie for the procurement;

1.4.2 Federal Clauses that will be required to be acknowledged by the vendor, as
applicable to procurements other than micro-purchases, and/or fair and
reasonable determination for micro-purchases;

1.4.3 Evidence of appropriate procurement methodology demonstrating fair and
open competition, e.g., small procurement. Request tor Proposals.

1.5 Upon written approval, the Grantee inay proceed with the procurement and submit an
invoice to the Stale for reimbursement of project expenses in compliance with Federal
guidance.

1.6 Upon the conclusion of the procurement, the Grantee shall submit final documentation
to the State.

1.7 The Grantee may submit a written request to the State's designated representative to
modity the type and/or quantity of the capital equipment detailed in the scope and



budget, provided that said changes are within the grant budget .amount. Said written
request must, contain sufficient details to support and substantiate the requested
change(s). Within 30 days of receipt of the Grantee's written request, the State will
provide a written decision to the Grantee as to whether or not approval is granted.



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY. ACTION PROGRAM
EXHIBIT C

BUDGET

C. 1 The Grant Limitation price, as defined in Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, is the Federal
Transit-Administration (FTA) Section 5339 portion of the eligible project costs. Federal
tiinds arc granted as follows:

Project FTA Section 5339
FTA

Funding

FTA

Funding
%

'  State
1

1 Capital
Match

Local

Match

Total

Project
Cost

Garage roof replacement $4,800 80% :  so $1,200 $6,000

2 Furnace replacement $8,000 80% !  so $2,000 $10,000

Total Project Funding $12,800 1  so $3,200 $16,000

Total Grant Funding $12,800

1.1 Funds are contingent upon Federal appropriations. No State funds will be requested.

C.2 Pre-approval of any procurement is required by the State as detailed in Exhibit B.

C.3 As applicable, the Grantee may seek reimbursement for these funds by submitting Individual
invoices for projects as completed. Requests shall be monthly or less frequent.

C.4 The invoicc(s) must include verification of soiirce(s) of matching funds.

C.5 Prc-approval to modify the type and/of capital equipment is required as detailed in §1.7,
Exhibit B.



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1. David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, TNC. (TRJ-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965. I ftinlier certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Slate's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number 0006652662

gp

y8
o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this tsi day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Sandy Alonzo . hereby certify that.
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected board chair of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2 The followinq is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Robillard CEO. Randall Pilotte CFO, Brenda Gagne CPO (may list more than
one person)

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. _ to enter into contracts or agreements
with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and furttier is authorized to execute any ahd all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect ttie purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority valid for
thirty (30) days from the dale of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that, ihe .person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) Indicated and that they have full authprity to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bir|l the corporation in^contracts with the State of New Hamps|.re.
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:
cte tcer

lonzo

hair

Signature of
Name: San

Title; Board

Rev. 03/24/20



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
j  DATe(MM/0«WYVy)

AaORD

" THIS CERTiFrC^ils7lSSuiD^sXMAHE^ OfInFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POJ-'CIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE H^D^. 7

"Important: if Iho cartlflcote holdefTs'an'AOOmONAL INSURED, the policyOos) must have AODrTIONAL INSURED provisions or bo ondoreod.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to ttie terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this CDrtlflcale does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endor9ement(s).

PRODUCER
I indsoy GoodrlchCONTACT

NAME:
FAX

Cross Insuranco-Mancncstof

tlOO FlmStfooi

Manchosicr

INSURB)

NH 03101

AOMESS- fnanch.cortsQcfossagoncy.coni

I lA/C Ho -.
(603) 645-1331

grsuRERA: 'grsuRERA:

Tri-County Commonity Action Program, Inc

30 Exchange Street

Berlin

|N8UR_ER B :

INEURER C :

INSURER 0;

INSUReR(S) AFFORDING COVERAQfc'

Philadelphia IndcmnlTy (r^s Co

Granito State t ioaltrr Care and I luman Services Scll-

HAICP

18058'

NH 03570

insurer E :

I nSURER F:

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

rmsis to CtRTIFYTIIAT 1HF P0UCIFS OF INS'uKANCIi IISIFDBKl.OW IIAVF HFF>I isSUFD lO ltIF rNSUHFO NAMHDWJOVH FOKTIIi".INlifcAlFD NXTn,S3AN^ ?.rrHr^
CFRVtFICATE MAY BF ISSUFD Ol^ MAY PFRTAIN. HIF INSUKANCI-; AFt-ORDHD HY Tl ll- POt.lCIHS OhSCRIHFI) HFRhIN IS SUBJFCf TO Al.l IHF. reXMS.
KXCl.tlSiON.SANl) CONOniONS OF SUOt POLICIES. (IMI IS SI lOWN MAY HAVH 8KHN KFQUCFI) BYPAII) Cl^S-

POLICY EXP

1

insr
L1R TYPE OF INSURANCE

COMMERCUL OENERAL LIABtLlTY

-rapctisoBtr
li><SOiWVD

CIAIMS-MAOE CXCUR

Oi:NXAC<;i«iOAT1j LIMIT AFfn.lLS PLJ^:

□'BO
JL-C1

□ I'H
JL"

Ofl.rhR: . _ „
AUTOMOBILE uAennv

><| ANYAUrO
'i OWA'LO ,« i
. AUTOS On\>-

IIKEO K
AUTOS ONiV 1.

LOG

X

SCHLOULLL)
AUTOS
NONOWNED
AUTOS ONLY

UMORELUALIAB [Xl OCCUR |
EXCESS UAB ; C1 AWS-MAOt- j

"Xi tU-tCNtlONS '^O'OW i'  1 txio .
jWORKERS COMPEHSArWN
|aN0 EMPl.OYERS' LlABtnY
ANY f^mjPBmiOR/PARINEKfliXlianrVL

ini-'<1CFn/ML'MlU:R HXCIUIM-OT
!(Minaai»ry )n NH)
; II yes. describe
'Oe.TCKIPriON Ot: OPERATIONS below

'

POIiCYKUMBCR

PHPKP5719dl

 0'

pHPK?57l9<i3

PHUB87054/.

POHCY CFF
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3,000.000

1.006.000
1.666,000
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li.L. UtSLASC • POLICY LWM

2.000,000

2.006.006'

1.000.000

1,000.000

1,000.000

oesCRIPnoil of OPERATJONS / locations l vehicles iACONO iO t. AddHkmsl ReniiNn ScNeduto. m»y be Htscbed If more tpece 1» rfldwred)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

New I lompshiro ITcportmonl of T'ransportaiion Hoit and Transit
PO Bo* 483

7 I lazcn D.'lvo

Concord NH 03302-O483

L.

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRinED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 2S (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights roserveu.

Tho ACORD namo and logo are registered marks of ACORD



^  . Certifications and Assurances ■ " Fiscal Year 2024

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2024 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of Applicant: f ftchovN \cc'Vis>

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: (check here) .

Or,

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selected:

Category Certification

01 Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant

02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying

:V. ~ * 5

05 Private Sector Protections

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08 Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program

11 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs

13 State of Good Repair Grants

14 Infrastructure Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Demand Responsive Service

18 Interest and Financing Costs

19 Cybersecurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and
Operations

20 Tribal Transit Programs

21 Emergency Relief Program
«  'A

yi vj
f  •;

rFRTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES SIGNATURE PAGE

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT

Nam. of (he ApplicanC

BY SIGNING BELOW, on behalf of the Applicant, I declare that it has duly authorised me to make these
Ccnirications and Assurances and bind its compliance. Thus, it agrees to comply with all federal laws, regulations,
and requirements, follow applicable federal guidance, and comply with the Certificatious and Assurances as
indicated on the foregoing page applicable to each application its Authorized Representative makes to the Federal
Transit Adromisiration (FT A) in the federal fiscal year, irrespective of whether the individual that acted on his or
her Applicant's behalf continues to represent it.

The Certifications and A^uranccs the Applicant selects apply to each Award for which it now seeks, or may
later seek federal assistance to be awarded by FTA during the federal fiscal year.

The Applicant affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the Certifications and Assurances it has selected in the
statements submitted with this docuraetn and any other submission made to FTA. and acknowledges that the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 etseq., and implcmcnlmg U.S. DOT regulations.
"Program Fraud Civil Remedies,"' 49 CFR part 31. apply to any certification, assurance or submission made to
FTA, The criminal provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 apply to any certification, assurance, or submission made m
connection with a federal public transportation program authorized by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other statute



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year'2024

In signing this document, I declare under penaltiw of peijury that the foregoing Certifications and Assurances, and
any other statements made by me on behnif of tl ; Applicant are true and accurate.

Signature \ j

Name,"?ejDn<Ye "RoV7A\c.rc\

Date.

Authorized Representative of Applicant



FFY 2024 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2024 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrecipients to comply with the requirements contained in the
agreement in order to receive Federal funds. The language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT).

I acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2024 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in force for the term of the
agreement.

CAP
Name of JVgency

Name of Authorized Official Signature
\



ps

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 07/18/2022

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name ofSubrecipient Agency: Tri-Countv Community^ Action Prosram

Tri-Count\> Communit\' Action Prosram, shall comply with all applicable federal laws,
regulations, and requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes
information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (As required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA)

Amount; $12,800

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 20.526
FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5339 BUS & BUS FACILITIES PROGRAM

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): 1385-2024-3

Federal Award Date: 9/1/2024

Contact information for sub-awarding official:

Name: Fred Butler f itle: Public Transportation Administrator, Bureau of l^il and Transit
Email: Frederick.J.Butler@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2565
Is this award for research and development? No
NKDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient Information:

Subrecipient Name: Tri-County Community Action Program
Subrecipient SAM.GOV I.D.: F44JKSNJDJIV16
Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Jeanne Robillard
Title of authorizing subrecipient official: CEO

Federal Clauses: Yes

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances; Yes
Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: 12%
(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federat
Government or. ifno such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the subrecipient
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minirnis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414 Indirect. (F&A) costs,
paragraph (f)).

Subaward Period of performance:

Start Date: 9/1/24 End Date: 6/30/26



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement ' . ' Revised 07/18/2022

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated bv this "action (aareement/amendmentK

For FFY: 2024 Section: 5339 Amount: $12,800

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the suhrecipient iormnai aureement & amemimeius):

For FFY: 2024, Section: 5339 Amount: $12,800

Pass-through requirements:

The Suhrecipient, Tn-Count\- Communin^ Action Prouram agrees to meet all requirement
imposed by the pass-through entity (NHDOT) on the suhrecipient so that the Federal award is
used in accordance with Federal statues, regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal
award.

The Suhrecipient, Tri-Count\' Community Action Proaram agrees to any additional
requirements that the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the suhrecipient in order for the
pass-through entity (NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own
responsibility to the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required
financial and performance reports.

The Suhrecipient, Tri-Counn' Communitx'Action Prosram agrees to permit the pass-through
entity (NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrccipients records and financial statements
as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and appropriate
terms and conditions concerning closcout ot the subaward.

Date:, | I

Name of authorizing suhrecipient official: Jeanne Rohiilard

Title of authorizing suhrecipient official: CEO

Signature of authorizing suhrecipient official: A



r'.C. Bz:-: vOcl, J.?::!. Fast CX~ic-A

August 2^, 197iVU:;Cu:EV

Cotnmu-nity Action in Coos,
Carroll and Graftcn Counties, lo.

69 Wiliard StrGec

Berlin, Wev l\arrpshir€' 03570
.Artn: F.red Hill Jr. & Glenn R,

Eastrr.an

Gentlemsn:

This is in renly "to ycirr rsscnl letler, renucsrin^ & cojr.' ol an
0:-:enption l&tier for tho i-brrvs organiz-aticn

ITuc-" to our records reteiitiori progran:, a copy of ths orjrrrxi.i
letter is not available.

Kov/ever, records in this office ir^dicate that a detomination
'  letter wss issued en March , 1966 to the abr>V5 croardcaticr:

ruling that thej'' vore exoript irori ^'ederal inccr^c z-ix ur.ner oocrror
5 01(c)(3) c-r the Internal ivr-vcnuo Code ei IF'JA.

:^,Thi3 rulinc rerr.ino in effect as Icng as th^re are no changes in
i'their character, burpcse. cr nietbod of operar,rcy..

I trcst that the fcregcing i.-forciaticn vd-ll serve yc-ur purpose.

V.CCLLLAi-1 I. v'TT'.TI'?■' •;

Your er-.ployer identificauion numbar is C202b7hOii



Internal Revenue Service Department of the Treasury

District
Director

10 Me'roTech Center

625 Fulton Street

Brooklyn. MY 11201

Data: JLIf! 3 0 1991

Tri-Counuy' Corrimuniwy Acrion
Progra.Ti. Inc-orpor'atc-d

30 £:•: change 'Zzreez

3e I" i i n, N H' C' 3 5 7 0

Person "tQ Co.nt2.ct:

Patricia Holub

Coatact "Teier.horir N'tambe:

'■ /16 ) 486-2333
illN" : 02- 0267404

Dear Sir or Madan:

Refer'ence is made to your recjues-- Dor verification of the
tax exempt status of Tri-County Ccn-ununity Action Program,
Inooroorated.

A determina-ion or ruling letter issued to an organisation
granting e.xemption under the Internal Revenue Code remains in
effect un.til the tax exempt status has been terminated, revoked
or modified. i. ;

f  f
Our records indicate that exemption v;as granted as shown below.

b 1 n c e r- e ^ y y o u r s

-ciff m,M'

i'atricia .noiuo

Manager. Custom.:
Service Unit

o I 0 r g e n 1 s a 1.1 o n:

Date of Sxe:ription Lett!

Tri-County Community .Action
p 1' o g r am, Iri c o r c-o r a t a d

•r: liarch 1966

Exemption grarited pursuant to section o0i(c)(3) of -he
Internal Pevenue Code,.

Foundation Classification i'if appi icabie) : liot a private
foundation as you are an organisation described in sections
.b03(a} (:i) and 170 (b ) ( 1) { A) (vi ) or the internal Revenue Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate

Leone,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PK()FiuSSIUf;\L;\SSl)Ci/\T10.V

IjOvEI< •

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the related
consolidated statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, the
related statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30,
2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance withfauditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors" Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be
issued.



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial.Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consclldated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors' report that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we;

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,

I  Inc. and Affiliate's internal control. Accordingty;^no such opinion is expressed.
^  V;

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.



Supplementary.Information -

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to-
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures/ applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 13, 2023. on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s intemal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. s internal control
over financial reporting and complpnce. ?.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliates 2022
financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial
statements in our report dated November 15. 2022. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, is consistent. In all
material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13, 2023



TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL BOSITION
JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Right of use asset, operating
Restricted cash

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

2023 2022

$ 4,400,730 $ 3,827,664

1,313.655 977.227

2.024,546 1.807.274

192,212 169.196

123,409 59.759

138.888 138.811

8.193,440 6,979.931

12,858,931 12,794,151

(6,522,499) (6.088,609)

6.336.432

208.857

413,721

622.578

6.705.542

410.431

410.431

$15.152,450 $14.095,904

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
r' Current portion of long term debt

Current portion of right of use liability, operating
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Right of use liability, operating, less current portion
Long term debt, net of current portion

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$  139,961
86.219

456.444

249.777

90,948

95,772

403.239
1,342.462

2.864.822

122,638
4,296,550

7,284,010

7,577,645

290,795

7,868,440

$  134,452

262.473
228.342
81.707

117,415

446.208
1,085,406

2,356,003

4,442,866

6,798,869

7,037,337

259.698

7.297.035

$ 15.152.450 $ 14.095,904

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED.SJAXEIVIENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grants and contracts

Program funding
Utility programs
In-kind contributions

Contributions

Fund raising
Rental income

Interest income

Gain on disposal of property
Other revenue

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restrictions

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Services:
Agency Fund
Head Start

Guardianship
Transportation ,
Volunteer |
Carroll County Dental '
Homeless

Energy and Community Development
Elder

Housing Services

Total program sen/ices

Supporting Activities:
General and administrative

Fundraising

Total supporting activities

Total functional expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

$ 39.636,536

1,131,923
1,458.145
479,251

252,119
23,626

867,061
26,196
6,817

2,735

43,884,409

137,290

44,021,699

1,314,337

3.107.886

651,255

1,404.213
72,150

679,379
20,422,871

13,099,599
1.276,827
212,979

42,241,496

1,236,580

3,315

1.239.895

43,481.391

540,308

7,037,337

With Donor

Restrictions

$  168,387

168,387

f.137,290)

31,097

2023

Total

$39,804,923

1,131,923
1..458.145

479.251

252,119

-  23,626
867,061
26.196

6.817

2.735

44,052,796

44.052.796

1.314.337

3.107.886
651.255

1.404,213

72,150
679,379

20.422,871

13.099.599
1,276,827
212,979

31,097

259.698

42,241,496

1,236,580

3,315

1,239,895

43,481.391

571.405

7,297.035

2022

Total

$33,019,028
1,178,528

1.862,325
228,341

140,578

8,616
797.436

484

8,874

4.789

37.248.999

37.248.999

1,453,842
2.792.837

658.956

892.112

62,053

■  673,708
17,630,850

9,978,945
1.095.578
248,736

35,487.617

1,146,090

1,266

1.147,356

36.634.973

614,026

6,683,009

$ 7,577,645 $ 290,795 $ 7,868,440 $ 7,297,035

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI^OUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM WC. AND APPILUTE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3Q. 2023

Energy end
Carroll County Community Housing GenersI and

Anencv Fund Head Start Guardlanshlo Trans Dortatlon Volunteer OenUI Homeless Develooment Elder Servlcea Tout Arfmlnlstratlve

Diceci Expenses

Peyrol S  323,177 S  1.644,947 S  424.637 5  680,490 $  44.947 S 422,973 $  757.036 »  1.360.748 $  564.883 S  56,045 $ 6.299.683 $  606,642

Peyrol taxes and benerns 99,401 449,995 109.489 133,770 11,316 97,590 199.734 382.064 116,514 1,599,695 149.438

Assistance to cf«nu 775 - 207,577 - 16,962.956 10,442,285 . 29.613.563

Consumeoie supplits 7,036 218,956 6.679 8,279 356 55,076 33.428 431,354 321.162 1.395 1.063.724 ,  25.899

Space costs and rentals 12.646 223.207 46.839 21,512 6.476 99.995 150,500 72,300 633.477 130.652

Depredetion expense 204.391 41.736 2,000 102.254 . 41,903 16.553 42.626 7,110 67.389 527.962

in-Kind expended 219.362 24.948 . 128,764 106.177 479.251

Consuttants and contractors 55.409 13.668 6.228 23.620 - 19.786 132.557 12 12.704 263.964 31,049

UdUties 228.071 29.700 23.217 18.069 1,592 11.819 30.614 45.326 25.978 30,465 445,051 5.226

Travel and meetingi 751 69.760 8.152 36.206 392 2.635 16.195 24.004 15.328 125 195.550 20.687

Ottier diract program costs 9.662 51.626 1.276 7,986 429 1,550 7.088 X790 6,788 36.315 157,716 84.852

Fiscal and administrative 6.024 264 15.594 294 39 8,239 5,125 24.030 1.744 3,100 64,453 124,673

BuiMng and grounds maintenance 156.544 94.147 56 13.630 8.548 4,675 576 17,874 7,010 303.262

Interest e;9ense 64.491 1.666 683 247 76 116 1.914 537 69.732

Vehicle expense 5.186 110.020 - - - 110.333 225.539

Insurance 56.280 6.422 663 3.756 1.596 1,619 8.434 6.299 • 3,155 90.225 38,916

Maintenance ol eqdpment and rental 63.270 20.416 5,738 9.375 4,925 5,919 17.182 16,137 5,291 7,879 148,132 16,131

11.021 10 . 177 1.722 19 4.561 2.427 100 20.057 215

Totaf Oiract Exp»nS9S 1.314,337 3.107,686 651.255 1.404,213 72,lkf' 679.379 20,422.871 13.099.599 1,276.627 212.979 42,241.496 '1.236,580

Indirect Expenaee

Indirect costs 133.132 299.446 69.805 119.456 6.641 71.567 137.310 275,680 123.351 1.236.580 (1,236,580)

Tour Direct 6 inctfreci expenses $  1,447.469 S  3,407.334 $  721.060 $  1.523.669 S  76.991 $ 750.936 $ 20.560.181 $ 13.375,279 S  1,400.178 $  212.979 S 43.478.076 $ '

3.315

3,315

Total

S 6,906,735

1.749.333

29,613,593

1.109.623

764.129

527.962

479,251

295,033

450.277

216.237

245,683
169.126

303.262

69.732
225.539

129.141

164.263
20,272

43.481.391

3.315 $<43,481,391

Sm NotM to Coneolldatsd Financial Statements
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TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM IMC AND AFFILIATE

CONSOUOATEO STATEMEKT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR eNDED JUNE 30.2022

CtrroE County

Enoffy tnd

Cofflmunlty

Ao*»c*Fund Heed Start nuarrllanshlo Tfitrsoortatlxn Volunteer Oerttal ilomeleae Develooment

Oirvct ExpvRMS

S  491.447 8  1.591.962 8  460.242 8  447,910 8 42.414 8  271090 8  693.549 8  1.412.854 8  490.036

Payrol laxoa and Dencflts 112.083 425.069 103,479 79,934 8.955 58,357 161.250 352.767 96.642

Assistance to dents . 89.Sr7 -
16.494.024 7.043,336

Coftsutnaua suppVas 6.143 167.505 6.474 7.2a 57,796 28.753 573,445 308.046

Spaca costs and lenials 4.434 194,445 44.378 16.636 ^  ■ 582 74.769 217.912 56.492

Oepradation expense 166.601 50.186 500 106,346 ■ 41409 15.459 60.397 5.833

uvMnd Bjqienaad 117.496 - • •
53.864 57,159

Consuliants and convadon 94,310 2.132 S.63S 13.178 ■ 197.993 203 44 17,986

Uifidaa 191.020 26,084 21.922 16.1F7 1 597 13.097 43.596 44.724 26.162

Travel and meetinos 9,147 58.464 5.692 27,Set 4.329 21.471 17.291 11.289

Other dect program costs 67,883 52,568 (8.560) 3.6e9 2.5se 971 943 25.003 5,765

Fiscal and administrative 91 294 8.920 622 75 8.460 6.667 36.011 4.578

Building artd grounds malnlenance 135,694 64.695 2.111 1.960 10,103 154 3.817

Interest experae 94.836 66 1.031 E6 -
102 368 11

VeNde expense 5,557 - 69,672
-

93.810

insurance 48.467 6,338 579 2,817 468 1,341 8.073 6.018

Maintenanco of equipment and rental 6.601 35.322 6,441 8,4(6 11700 18.121 67.777 8.332

13.326 35 100 - 1.595 81 4.996 3.407

Totaf Olracf Expenses 1.453.642 2.792.837 658.956 892,1-2 62.053 673,706 17.630.850 9.978.945 1.095.578

Indbect Expenses
106,828

Indect costs 144,922 273,225 70.128 75.578 8.193 66.561 110.702 289.953

Tots/ Mrect < Indtnei expenses S 1.596.764 8 3.066.062 8  729.064 8  967.eM 8 BC.246 8  742.269 8 17,741.552 8 10.268.896 8  1.201406

Houoing

SicdEfis

23.485

727

87.383

20,303

025

100.265

2.613

8,757

3.250

6,631
125

248,736

Total

G«(wr«l«nd

Admlnlatratlva Fundfilainq

% 5,825,992 %

1.338.623

23,626.957

1,160.632 .

615.131

519.334

226,341

331.481

412.604

154,299 i.

257.115

70.665

227.497

96.500

169.039

77.181
192,471

23,865

35.487.617

581.976

133.158

20.525

112.318

35.842

4,651

6,024

63.634

144,494

442

82

34,884

7.383

275

1.146.090

1.146.090 f1.146.090)

1.266

ToUl

6.507.970

1.531.781

23.828,957

1.181.157

727.449

519,334

220.341

^  387.323
1  417.545

160.323

321215

i  215.159
227,939

96.^
169.039

112.065

196,654

23.940

1.266 36.634.973

1.266 8 38,634.973

•.rt-is'-

Sm NolM to ConsoilditBd Financial Sbunwnts
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TRI-COUNTY CQMiyiUNITY^ACTlbN PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE ••'irY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Gain on disposal of property

Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property
Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCInS'ACTIVITIES
Repayment on long-term debt
Repayment on capital lease obligations

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest

$  571.405 $ 614.026

528.849

(6.817)

(217.272)
(23,016)
(63.650)

(77)

193,971

21.435
9,241

(21,643)
(42.969)
257.056

1,206.513

8,091

(16.1,013)

(152,922)

(140,807)

(140,807)

912,784

5,215,322

520.221
(8,874)

(190,025)
47,227

' (6,774)
(85.217)

258,170

(5,565)
(301,728)
(149,180)
122,068

(315.239)

499,110

8,874

(158,013)

[149,139)

(129,342)

(129,342)

220,629

4,994.693

$  6.128,106 $ 5,215,322

88,845 $ 95,695

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AHB AFFILIATE

" NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

f

NOTE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. "and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc;
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction, and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following;

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
.  support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
!■ This includes planning and budget |development, bookkeeping and

accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start
Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.



NC)teS"fa-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri-County Community Action Head Start funded enrollment is 217, but
over the course of the program year serves approximately 250 children in
Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-based
classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves over
400 individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship.
representative payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management
services and private probate accounting services.

Transportation

|"he Organization's transit program provides|. various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 14
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Voiunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 208 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 50
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experier;ices, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate

over 15,000 hours yearly.

10



ACTION PRQGRAItfrfiINC' AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCrAt STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Carroll County Dental
Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to . uninsured families and "individuals. The Center offers a full
array of services including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based oh income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The .,
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Homeless

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach
Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through

i  direct pay to vendors or a disgount on the client's bill. Community Contact
I  sites allow local participants .^ccees to energy assistance programs and

other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

Low-Income Weatherizatlon

The NH weatherizatlon program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherizatlon Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 4 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling. Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

11



TRl-C;i*^N-TY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANClAt'STAtEIVIENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Housinp Services

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States-Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin, New.
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and Is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit is performed as it
relates to Cornerstone's compliance with its major federal program in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States and the audit requireme.nts of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations part 200, Uniform J^dministrative Requirements. Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
An unmodified opinion was issued.

Method of accounting

The consolidated financial slalemeiits of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and affiliate have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, as promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than
contributions, and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date
of receipt or payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications;

12



NOTES TO CONSOllibATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not
subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for
any purpose in performing the primary objectives of. the Organization.

■ These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and board of directors.

I  1

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions
are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be
maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $290,795 and $259,698
at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. See Note 13.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting, period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assetl with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. Past due receivables are
written off at management's discretion using the direct write off method; this is not
considered a departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the United
State because the effects of the direct write off method approximate those of the
allowance method. Management selects accounts to be written off after analyzing
past payment history, the age of the accounts receivable, and collection rates for
receivables with similar characteristics, such as length of time outstanding. The
Organization does not charge interest on outstanding accounts receivable.

13



l^iTRI-nnUNTY COIVIIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAr^CIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and. improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using .the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual progrann is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows;

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles ' 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment . 5 to 15 years ^

fc
.0

Client Rents and HUD Rent Sufjsidy
Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

Refundable Advances

Grants received In advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $403,239 and $446,208 as of June 30. 2023 and 2022, respectively.

14



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNlty &t3TION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLidATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit, Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
.with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a' private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for donors. The Organization files information returns in the
United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three
years after it is filed.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
Management does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not been
recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a). '

Retirement plarig 7

The Organizatioh maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discietiun. Iri January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2023 and 2022. there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the Organization's
403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.

15



-  TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

^  " NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported, as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net-assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the c|je date. Promises that remain uncollected mor^than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
resUiuliuiis aie reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no

unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2023 and 2022.

As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $192,212 and $169,196,
respectively. This amount is included in contributions in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES to" consolidated FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~" V
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose 'fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of, the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the--short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the
various programs and supporting services based on actual or
estimated time employees spend on each function as reported on a
timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program
based upon the classification of each employee and-allocated to the
parlous program based upon the time employees spend on each
'lunction as noted above. ^ ■

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each
program as a percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These
expenses Include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health
and dental insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is
allocated to each program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon
specific assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation
expense on the statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are
used by multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the
benefiting program based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs
related to a building include depreciation, insurance, utilities, building
maintenance, etc. These costs are reported as space costs on the
statements of functional expenses.
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-  TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTIQN'^ROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE ^

NOTES TO CONSOLrDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on
vehicle usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs
based on square footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture

- and equipment is allocated to programs using the book basis of the
■  insured assets. " "

"S. •*.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost
Pool and are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of
program expenses. The expenses include items such as
administrative salaries, general liability insurance, administrative
travel, professional fees, and other expenses which cannot be
specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. The actual
rates for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 were approximately 11.26% and
10.95%, respectively, which is allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policy

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the avai!abilit)f of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred.|rhe total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $20,143 and
$6,696, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30. 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
"Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs." The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2023 and 2022.

Revenue Recognition Policv

The Organization derives revenue primarily from grants, contracts, and
contributions. Grants are recognized as revenue upon receipt. Revenue from
contracts is recognized when the service has been performed. Contributions are
recognized as revenue when the donor makes a pledge to give that is. in
substance, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
restrictions or without donor restrictions.
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TRl-COUNTY.CQffHVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFiaATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS^

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Cornerstone derives revenues from the rental of apartment-units. Revenues are
recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due and control of the apartment
unit Is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases are for aTerm of one year and"
are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is transferred to the lessee
in. an amount that reflects the consideration Cornerstone expects to be entitled to in
exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain a lease will be expensed
as incurred.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases {Topic 842), to increase
transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets
and lease liabilities on the statement of financial position and disclosing key
information about leasing arrangements for lessees and lessors. The standard
applies a right of use model that requires, all leases with a lease term of more than
12 months, to recognize an asset representing its right to use the underlying asset
for the lease term and liability to make lease payments to be recorded. The
Organization elected not to restate the comparative period. The Organization also
elected not to reassess at adoption (i) expired or existing contracts to determine
whether they are or contain a lease, (ii) the lease classification of any existing
leases, (iii) initial direct costs for existing leases. The adoption of ASU 2016-02
resulted in the recognition of an operating right of i^se assets of $208,857 and
opef&ng lease liabilities of $208,857 as of June 3(|,: 2023. Results for periods
beginning prior to July 1, 2022 continue to be reported in accordance with the
Organization's historical accounting treatment. The adoption of ASU 2016-02 did
not have a material impact on the Organization's results of operations and cash
flows.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30. 2023
and 2022:

2023 2022

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 4,400,730 $ 3,827,664
Restricted cash. Guardianship Services Program 1,313,655 977,227
Accounts receivable 2,024,546 1,807,274
Pledges receivable 192,212 169,196
Restricted cash 413.721 410.431

Total financial assets 8,344,864 7.191.792
Less amounts not available to be used

within one year: '
Net assets with donor restrictions 290,795 259,698
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Restricted cash. Guardianship Services Program
Restricted cash

Less net assets with time restrictions to be
met in less than a year

>1. Amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet genera!
expenditures over the next twelve months

1,313,655

413,721

(254.537)

1.763,634

977.227

410,431

(207.879)

1.439.477

£  6.581.230 £ 5752.315

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $6,982,000 and $5,899,000 at June 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. The balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for each financial institution up to
$250 000 ' Cash balances may exceed the insured limits at times throughout the
year.' |

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of June 30:

Cash, operations
Restricted cash, current

Restricted cash, long term

Total cash and restricted cash

2023

4,400,730
1,313,655
413.721

2022

3,827,664
977,227

410.431

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture.
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'  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June'30,_ 2023 and 2022 was $20,079 and $20,069, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022. These .amounts are included in restricted cash in the
Consolidated Statements of FInanciakPosition.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30. 2023 and 2022 was $174,841 and $174,807, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $1,313,655 and $977,227, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2023 and 2022
was $1,313,655 and $977,227, respectKjely, and is included in the restricted cash.
Guardianship Services Program balance on the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Position.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $218,801 and $215,555, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2023 and 2022, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2023 and 2022 consists of weatherization materials,
totaling $123,409 and $59,759, respectively.
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*  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 5. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2023;

Capitalized
Cost

n,.

$ 10,119.418
2.278,559

42,114
418.840

Building
Equipment
Construction in progress
Land

Accumulated

Depreciation

$  4,630,469

-1,892,030

Net

Book Value

$ 5,488,949
386,529
42,114

418.840

S 6.522.499 S 6.336.432

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2022:

Building
Equipment
Construction in progress
iLand

Capitalized
Cost

$ 10,039,601
2.329,022

6,688

418,840.

$ 12.794.151'

Accumulated

Depreciation

$ 4,426,613
1,661,996

Net

Book Value

$  5,612,988
667,026

6,688
418.840

S 6.705.542

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is iininaleiial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 totaled
$527,962 and $519,334, respectively.

NOTE 6. ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES
For the years ending June 30, 2023 and 2022, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2023 and
2022, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $249,777 and $228,342,
respectively.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION-RROffiRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30. 2023 and 2022 consisted of
the following:

2023 2022

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360
monthly installments of $1.,664, including interest
at 5% per annum. Secured by general business
assets. Final installment due January 2027.

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $2,936, including interest at 4%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April

$ 64,236 $ 80.546

2031. 236,057 261,160

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485. including interest of
2.75% plus the bank's internal cost of funds
multiplied by 67% with an indicative rate of
3.28%. Secured by first commercial real estate
mortgage on various properties and assignments
of rents at various properties. Final installment
due August 2040. J 2,276,888 2.377.\69

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. This capital advance is not
subject to interest or principal amortization and
will be forgiven after 40 years, or in August 2047. 1,617,600 1.617,600

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage
payable due to New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authority. The mortgage is not subject to interest
or principal amortization. Payments are deferred
for 40 years; final payment due in August 2047. 250.000 250.000

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized debt issuance costs

4,444,781
(B.270)

4,586,475
(9.157)

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

4.436.511
(139.961)

4,577,318
(134.452)

$  4.296 550 S 4442 866
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAr STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30,-2023 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2024 ... $ 139,961

2025 145,697
2026 151,677
2027 148,113
2028 143,453

Thereafter 3,715,880

S 4.444.781

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties a? disclosed in the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest for the years ended June 30, 2023 and
2022 at 9.25% and 5.75% per ahnum, respectively. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2023 and 2022. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

On July 1. 2022, the Organization was required to adopt ASU 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 842). As part of implementing ASU 2016-02, the Organization evaluated
current contracts to determine which met the criteria of a lease. The right of use
(ROU) asset represents the Organization's right to use underlying assets for the
lease term, and the lease liabilities represent the Organization's obligation to make
lease payments arising from these leases. The ROU assets and lease liabilities, all
of which arise from operating leases, were calculated based on tKe present value of
future lease payments over the lease terms. The Organization has elected to
discount future cash flows at the risk-free borrowing rates commensurate with the
lease terms, which was 3.01% at June 30, 2023. Common expenses, classified as
space costs in the accompanying financial statements, are considered a non-lease
component under FASB ASC 842 and are recognized as costs are incurred. The
Organization's operating leases are described below.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space and
office equipment. Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various
starting dates, lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally; the
Organization has several facilities which are leased on a month-to-month basis.
For the years ended. June 30, 2023 and 2022, the annual rent expense for leased
facilities and office equipment totaled $147,801 and $141,820, respectively.

Lease liability maturities as of June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30:

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

Amount

91.317
59,685

52,460
11,372

3,543

Total undiscounted lease liability
Less imputed interest

218,377

(9.520)

Total lease liability
•fe'

i'

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS
The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, Transportation and Elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The fair value of donated services included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Professional services and

services for disabled

Packing, setup and delivery of
congregate and home
delivered meals

Head Start

$  76,770 $

Senior

Meals

102.077

Total

$  76.770

102.077

S  102.077 S 178.847
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The fair value of donated services.included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows;"

Senior

Head Start Meals Total

Professional services and.
services for disabled $ 2,479 $ -. $ 2,479

Packing, setup and delivery of
congregate and home
delivered meals

S  2.479 S 55.359 £ 57.838

Numerous volunteers have donated significant amounts of time to the
Organization's program services. Although no amounts have been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements, management estimates the fair value of those
services to be approximately $367,930 and $277,300 for the years ended June 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and Elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental
payment and the market ratefor the property based upon a recent appraisal. |

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meals Total

Difference between rent paid
and market rate £ 69.097 ^ 4.100 $ 73,197

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meals Total

Difference between rent paid
and market rate £ 58.230 S 1.800 $ 60,030
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NOTES TO'Ct3NSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in .the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2023 are as follows;

Head Start Homeless Transportation Total
Employee use of
home $ 73,495 $ - - $ 73,495

Donated goods - - 24,948 24,948
Hotel rooms for

homeless clients : 128.764 128.764

Total £ 73.495 £ 128.764 S 24.948 £ 227.207

The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Head Start Homeless Total

Employee use of home £ 56,789 $ - $ 56.789
Donated goods - 1,400 1,400
Hotel rooms for homeless clients : 52.284 52.284

Tot^l £ 56.789 £ 53.684 S 110.473
.-.S

f  T

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Organization receives a majority of its support from federal and state
governments. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, approximately
$39,361,299 (89%) and $32,598,596 (88%), respectively, of the Organization's total
revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a significant
reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant impact on
the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone receives a large majority of its support from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.
approximately 61% and 64%, respectively, of Cornerstone's total revenue was
derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. In the
absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of Cornerstone
Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development.
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NOTES TO CONSOriDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The majority of Cornerstone's assets .are apartment projects, for which operations
are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In addition,
Cornerstone operates in a regulated environment. The operation of Cornerstone is

. subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and local
regulatory agencies, including, but not limited, to, HUD. , .Such administrative
directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an apt of Congress or an
administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes may occur with little
notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the administrative
burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

Temporary municipal funding $  192.212 $ 169,196

Restricted buildings 36,257 38,084

Loans - HSGP 23,484 24,234

RSVP program funds 15,708 6,255

FAP/EAP 14,092 12,079

CC Coos 5,099 6,132

Head Start 3,577 . 2,370

CC Carroll | 1801. 427

CC Grafton ' 180' 421

LIWAP Program 6 -

RSVP - Matter to Balance - 500

Total net assets with donor restrictions S  290.795 $ 259.698

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmental Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.
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'notes to consolidated financial statements
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The - exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2.

'  2012r the State of New'Hampshire Department of'Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the.remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of.the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted -that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30, 2023 and subsequently, legal actions were brought
against the Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as
of June 30. 2023, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability,
no amount has been accrued by the Organization at this time.

NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Cornerstone's regulatory agreement with HUD. the Organization is required
to set aside amounts into a replacement res^^ve for the replacement of property
and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-restricted deposits of
$207,956 and $208,162 were held in a segregated account at June 30. 2023 and
2022, respectively.

During the year ended June 30. 2023, HUD approved a loan from the replacement
reserve account to the operating account to cover operating expenses due to the
delay in HAP vouchers being processed by HUD. Once all HAP vouchers are
processed and paid. Cornerstone will pay back the replacement reserve account the
loan balance of $26,649. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not available for
operating purposes.

Cornerstone's use of the residual receipts account is contingent upon HUD's prior
written approval. Residual receipts of $6,454 and $3,003 were held in a segregated
account for the years ended June 30. 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Under the regulatory agreement, Cornerstone is required to set aside amounts for the
return of resident paid deposits. At June 30, 2023 and 2022 $4,391 and $4,390,
respectively, were held in a segregated account and generally are not available for
operating purposes.

■t.

29
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NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT-S«-:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of Cornerstone's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted

.. directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
,accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.

In accordance with the policy noted above, Cornerstone was required to remit funds
to HUD totaling $71,396 during the year ended June 30, 2022.

NOTFie SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated events through November 13, 2023. which is the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.
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THIJ^OUMTY COMMUNITY *rTin»J l»Pnr.BAM INC

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDiTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUWE 30. 2023

FEDERAL GRANTOR/PRCORAM TITLE

U.S. Datxrtnfnt of HciHh tnd Hurntn S«fvtew
HEAD START CLUSTER
Head Stan

Head Stan

Head Stan

CRSSA-Head Stan

ARPA-HeadSon

Low Irvoms Housetwtd Water Assistance Program

Low-Income Home Energy Assitianee
Low-Income Home Energy Asaistance
ARPA-Low-lncome Horr>e Energy Assistance
Low-Income Home Energy As^stance
ARPA-Low-tncome Home Energy Assistance

FEDERAL

AL>I

PASS-THROUGH

GRAKTOfTS NAME

93.600

63.600

93.600

93.600

93.600

93.499 Stale of NawHsmpstve Office of Energy and Pbnrlng

93.568 State Of New HampeNreOffica of Energy and Plaming
93.566 Stats of New KampsNreCmce of Energy and Planning
93.568 Stata of New Hampsnire Office of Energy end Planning
63.568 State of New Harr^Mfiire Office of Energy end Planning
93.568 Stata Of New HampsNm Office of Energy and Ranning

1 GRANTOR'S
IDENTIFYING

NUMBER

t

F^RA^ VEXP^OITXftES

01CH011936432-03
01CK011938-02-00
01CHOtl936-01-04

01HE001251-01G1

01HE00125lGt-Ol

[CLUSTER TOTAL

2101NHLWC5n

2201NHLIEI

2301NHUEA/2301 NHllEE
UHEAPARP22

. G-20aiNHUEA

C-2001NHLIEA

TOTAL

.648!
34.546

1,197,945
6.669

156.900

3.044.724

146.681

1,742,864

8,696.322
114,236
224,125
69,629

10,869.176

AGING CLUSTER

Speciel Proywns for the Agmg-TAe III, Pan 8 • Grants loi Supponlve Services and Seniors Centers (SEAS)
Special Proyami for the Aging-TtOe Hi. Pan B - Grents lor Supponlve Services and Seniots Centers (Sr. Wheels)
Special Progrvns lor the Aging-Titte III, Pen B • Grants lor Supponlve Services ana Seniors Centers (Sr. Wheels)

Programs lot the Aging - TlOe 111. Pert C • Nutrition Services (Congregate 8 HO Meals)
ARPA - Special Programs for the Aging - Tide HI. Pen C - Nutrition Services (Congregate 6 HO Meals)

Nutrition Services mcsntlve Program (NSIP)

Commrity Services Blodt Grart
CV - Comnxjnity Services Btodi Gram

Temporary AssistarKe (or Needy FemBles (iARC)

AcOvides to Suppon STLT Healtft Oepanmeni Response to Public Health or Heaiihcare Crises

Social Ser^ces Block Gram (TIda XX l&R)
Social Services Blodt Grant (Title XX HO)
Sodal Services Block Grwii (Guardianship)

NH Family CaregNer Suppon Tide lit E (Family Caregiver)

Slate Healh insurance Assistance Progrvn (SHIP)

Centers for Medicare & Medk»id Services (MIPPA)

Special Programs lor the Agirtg Tide IV and Tide H (SMPP)

Pta)ects (or Asslsisnca In Transition from Homeiessness Program (PATH)

Total U.S. Departmenl of Health arxf Human Services

93.044 Slate of New Hampshire Mftce of Energy and Planning
93.044 State of New Hampshire Oepertmeni of KeMin and Human Servicat
93.044 State of New Hampshire Oepanmeni of Health and Human Servicas

83.045 Stale of New Hampshire Oepanment of Heaiih and Human Services
93.045 Stats of New Hampshin Deparunem of Heelh tnd Human Services

93.0^' State of New Hampshire Oepanment of Heeir end Human Services

93.569 Stats of New Kampshira OeparVnant of Health and Human Servlees
93.569 Stata of New Hampshire Deperment of Heehh end Human Services

93.558 Stats of New Hampshire Departmenl of HeaBh end Human Services

93.391 State of New Hampshire Department of Health end Human Senrices

93.667 State of New Kampshira Department of Health and Human Services
93.667 State Of New Hanpsfsre Department of Health and Human Services
93.667 Stale of New Hampshire Oepanment of Health and Human Services

93.052 Stata of New Hampshire Depannvent of HesBh and Human Services

93.324 Stats of New Hampshire OeparbnentofHeslth end Human Services

93.071 Sute of New Hampshire Oepertnem of Heatm and Human Services

93.048 State of New Hampshire Depertment of Health and Human Servicea

93.150 State of New Hampshire Office of Human Services. Bweau of Homeless end Houskvg Services

2101NH0AS$

512-500352

TOTAL

3.979
54,950

52.701

111S30

RFA-2023-BEAS-04-e£ASN-09

RFA.?rtM-nFA.S4>4-BFASN-09

TOTAL

267,060
134.975

422.035

Nona

CLUSTER TOTAL

89.764

623.429

102-500731 ?
IO276OO731 (
TOTAL I

1802NHTANF fj

535.232
192.741

727.923
4'

r »:600
d

NH75OT(XXI031 • 5

074-SO0S89f545-S00387

RFA-2023-6EAS-04-BEASN-06 '
102-500731

TOTAL

570-500928

4 ̂
86,366
123.854

27,196

239.436

28.766

074-500589/545-500387 6.834

074-5005891545-500387 5.787

074-500589/545-500387 0.379

05-95-42-423010-7826 53606

t 16.012.925
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TRIJ^QIWTY COMMUNTTY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023

FEDERAL PASS-THROUOH

GRANTOR'S

IDENTIFYING FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

Wea^^^tonAM^no^kx Low-Income Persons
Weamertzslion Assistance for Low-Income Persons

81.042

81.042

New Hanvshire OeptnmenI d Energy
New Hampshire Department of Energy

OE-EE0009916

OE-EE0010C001

S 343,790

339.286

Total U.S. Department d Energy
S  r 683.076

v

S  » 7^072
— — T ' . ' ■

S ^ 70i>2

il.S Cornorailon for NaUonai and CommunlnrServlee

Redrtd and Senior Vdunteer Pragrem 94.002
22SRFNH001

Total U.S. Corporatton for NalionaJ and Community Sen^

U.S. Deoenment of Aortcutttire

CNld and Addl Care Food Program 10.558 State d New Hampshire Deperiment of Education
S t42.-1l6

Total U.S. Oepanmont of Agrtcdtura
s 142.116

us nenartmenlofTrerWDortallon

Formula Grsntt lot RuralArees (Section 5311) 20.509 State d New Hampshire Department d Transportation NH-18-X040 % 307.594

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER

Enhanced MOPily d Seniors and Individuals wiih Oisabtttles 20.513 State ol New Hampshire Department d Transportation NH-18-X048

CLUSTER TOTAL

258.632

2S6.632

Total U.S. Department d Transportation
i S66.226

U.8. Deoertmeol of Houelno and Urban Develoomenl

Emergency Solutions Gram Program
Errwrgcncy Sdutloru Grant Program (EPS)

14.231

14.231

State d New Hampstiire Department d Health and Human Services
State d New Hampshira Department d Health and Human Services

TOTAL

i 66.435

263.615

370.050

Continuum ol C«fe Program (HOIP) • PSHI
Continuum ol Care Program (HOIP) • Coordinated Entry
Continuuni d Care Program (HOIP) - PSHI!
Continuum d Care Program (HOIP) - Youtn Navigator

ContkYium d Care Program (HOIP) - Youth TraneitionBl Living

14.267

14,267

14.267

14.267

14.267

State d New Hampshiie Department d Health and Human Servicae
StBla d New Hem^re Oapanment ol HeaKh and Human ScrAcee
Sista d New Hampslve Department d Hedih and Human Servicet
State ol New Han^ehlre Department of HaeRh and Human Strvicei
Sate of New Hampshire Departmere of Heetm and Human Servicet

NM0020L1T001811

SS-201S-BHHS4)1-Coord-05

NH0120T1T0OigO0

NH014SY1T0O2CI0O

NH0147Y1T002(X)0

TOTAL

173,775
112.034

37.787

1,016

998

326410

Totd U.S Oepanmenl d Housing and Urt>an Devetopmeru
696.460



TRI^OUMTY COMMUNrry ACTION PftOGR^. INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPEMDTTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUME 30.2023

FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

U.S. Paotftmfit of Tfwury

Coron«v<nis ReKaf Fund

EnwDencv Renta( Assittanca Program
Cold Weslhar ShaUer

ETH

Total U.S. Oepanmant of Via Treesury

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FEDERAL

ALN

PASS-THROUCH

GRAI^OR'S NAME

GRANTOR'S

IDENTIFYING

NUMBER

21.019 Stata of NH Govemon Ofllca of Emefgancy ReHal and Reeowy Shalef Progiw

21.023 NH Homing FmancaAuiftorty
21.023 State of New Hatrrpcfve Oepadraent of Hecftn and Human Services

21.027 NH Housing Flranca AumorlQr

TOTAL

FEDERAlit
EXPENDITURES

g.ses

14,738.457
106.000

14,841X57

4.486,102

S  19.334.444

3  37.505.319

NOTE A. BASIS OP PRESENTATION , . , ^ .

County Cotwnunity Acdcm Pro9^af^ tic., il le nol mtanoed to and does not praser* lha frwnefal potWon. chenoaa In nai assets, or casii flows of the Organaatlon.

NOTE B • SUMMARY OF SIGNIRCAMT ACCQtJNTING POUCfES '<
^«is ®f accounthg. Sm^ expenditure, are racognfzaa fotowmg ma coM t^las contMnad In UnOorm Guldanca. wtiwain cartain .yp« of «pend<i«s era not alOMbia or era IWted as to -etnbursarmm. Neg^

iamounts snown on the StJwdula represent atflustments or esedts made in the normal course of business to amounu reported as expenifliuras in pdor years.

NOTE C . IMPtRECT RATE

TrlCounty Community Action Proyam tic. has elected to not use the lO-percanl da minimis indtwa cost rate aSowcd under ina Untorm Guidance.

-4 •
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States . the financial
statements of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and
2022, and the related statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, the related statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2023. and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 13.
|023. k

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A matenal weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control,,.was...for. the limited purpose described in the,„fir%t
paragraph of this section and was not designed to.identify all deficiencies in Internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Cornmunity Action
Program, Inc.'s financial staterhents are free from material misstatement. we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BYTHE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement.
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. Tri-County Community Action.,
Program, Inc.'s major federal programs ar^ identified in the summary of auditors results
section of the accompanying schedule of findfrigs and questioned costs. ^

In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30. 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.
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W© are required to be independent of T-fi-County Community Action Program, Inc.-and>tQ-,meet
our other ethical responsibilities, In accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to-
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementationVand maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. s compliance based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards, GovemmenI Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may. involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of. internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if
there is a substantial likel|iood that, individually or in the aggregate, it wquld influence the
judgment made by a reasotiable user of the report on compliance about Tri-C©unty Community
Action Program, Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing ah audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance. whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Tri-County Community Action
Program. Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

■ Obtain an understanding of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

37



are required to communicate with those-charged with governance regarding, among ..o.tt:ier^..,
"matters, the planned scope and timing of the-'audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees; jn the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, no.ncompliance with a
type of compliance requiremerit of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in Internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be rnaterial weaknesses, as defined above. However,, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified. \

V ' -« •
T  .♦

Our audit was not designed for the .purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13, 2023
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023

1  The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the''Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Rnancial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during
the audit are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each
Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
programs.

6. No audits findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)
are reposed in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Emergency Solutions
Grant Program-ALN 14.231

U.S. Department of the Treasury, Emergency Rental Assistance Program - ALN
21.023

U.S. Department of the Treasury. Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery
Funds - ALN 21.027

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $1,125,160.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Chief Program Officer

Tri County Community Action Program Inc.

Professional Summary:
Successful oversight of the day to day aspects and operations of Tri County CAP's Transit, Guardianship and
Energy Assistance Programs.

Experience:

Tri County Community Action Program, Inc.
.6/30/2020-Present

Department Head, Economic Supports
6/5/2022 Chief Programs Officer

Tri County CAP, Inc.

Tri County Transit
31 Pleasant St.

Berlin NH 03570

5/2017-6/30/2020

Director of Transportation

Responsibilities include;
Overseeing the operations and administrative functions of a social service transportation program serving Coos,
Northern Graflon and Carroll Counties.

Tri-County CAP, Inc.
Tri County Transit
. Pleasant $t. ■ -

Berlin NH (®570 f,
7/2004-5/2017

Operations Manager

Responsibilities include;
•Running the daily operations of a public transit and para transit service.
•Facility Management.
•Gathering statistics
•Quarterly reporting to NHDOT and BEAS.
•Preparing quarterly invoices to BEAS and NHDOT
•Weekly employee scheduling, staff management.
•Creating procedure manuals
•Grant writing
•Budget preparation
•Writing Warrant Articles
•Drug & Alcohol Testing
* Emergency Preparedness

Mountain Village Construction
P.O. Box 96

IVlUan,N.H. 03588
5/1995 - 1/2004

•counts Manager/Office Manager

Responsibilities included;



♦Customer sen'ice.
♦Accounting using Quick Books Pro.
♦Preparing payroll and Tax Payments.
♦Preparing Customer Statements and Invoices.
♦Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable.
♦Creating and running Profit and Loss Reports.
♦Data Entry.
♦Phone communications and general secretarial duties,
MUan Parks and.Eecreation Dept.
P.O. Box 300
lMUan,N.H. 03588
6/1997-3/2002
Parks and Recreation Director

Responsibilities included;
♦Directed and implemented sports and recreational programs for youth and adults for the
Towns of Milan, West Milan, and Dummer.

♦Development of new programs and year round activities.
♦Producing yearly budgets.
♦Equipment and materials purchasing.
♦Organizing and supcA'ising a large Volunteer staff.
♦Working with the public to create new programs.
♦Coordinating with the Milan Village School on athletic and after school programs.
♦Applying for Federal and State Grants.
Education:

•  Graduate GorhanxHigh School
Gorham NH t f

•  Granite State College
Emergency Management

•  Southern New Hampshire University
Bachelor of Business Administration

NHDOT Courses
Fundamentals of Successful Project Management, MTAP/RTAP Financial Management Course
Basics of Facilities Management Seminar (Facility Maintenance Plan), Transit Security Workshop
FTA Drug & Alcohol Workshop, Emergency Planning and Disaster Management, NH Conference on Statewide
Emergency Preparedness, Procurement for Small and Medium Transit Systems.
Certified Training and Safety Reviewer
Community Transportation Association of America
June 2009 !

Certified Safety and Security Officer
Community Transportation Association of America
10/2010

Tri State Transit Conference
9/2007, 10/2008, 10/2010,9/2011,9/2013,9/2014,9/2016,9/2017
Grant Writing Workshop
New Hampshire Community Technical College
Berlin NH 10/2005



Objectives:
I am looking for a Job that will allow me to utilize the skills I've honed over my years of work in

various facilities to their fullest potential.

Education

White Mountain Community College
cn^dits tonuinis fincUchfr'^ De^^rcr / Working on business degree

Experience
Tri County CAP - Transit I 31 Pleasant St, Berlin, NH

ol"rran.sporln!i«'>n DctoK-r i\ 2(121- Present

❖ Follow Department of Transportation (DOT) policies and procedures
❖ Oversee, write and manage grants and financial resources to support Division Programs.
❖ Develop and implement strategies for improving program

❖ Ensure that program meet or exceed their strategic goals
❖ Provide regular supervision to program managers
❖ Responsible for general oversight of program .
<* Certified Passenger assistance trainer J
❖ Certified Defensive Driver trainer

Tri County CAP - Transit I 31 Pleasant St, Berlin, NH
Opi'fation.s Managci' July 1, 2017 (AinhiT (->, 2021

<♦ Follow Department of Transportation (DOT) policies and procediores
❖ Lead, direct and manage fleet drivers and dispatch staff.
❖ Hiring, training, evaluating performance from staff
❖ Participale in the development and plan of annual budgets
❖ Ensure operations are compliant with DOT standards for safety and insurance purposes.

Tri County CAP - Transit I 31 Pleasant St, Berlin, NH
i  /Ipf'f'/ 20IS - 30, 2(,'i7

❖ Assign drivers routes, destinations, and timelines.
❖ Keep in close contact with drivers who are on the road.
❖ Proficient at using dispatch software, and Medicaid Portal and software.
❖ Responsible for keeping, verifying, and monitoring driver daily logs.
<* Attend quarterly staff meetings and take minutes for those meetings.
❖ Effectively work with co-workers
<* Provided outstanding customer service



Wildcat Mountain Ski Area I Gorham, NH

A.s,st Guti.si Service:) .Vianoger Noui'mber 2014 - April 2(.M:-
<• Cross-trained and backed up other customer service managers.
❖ Hired seasonal staff.

❖ Made out weekly schedules.
❖ Oversees all guest services operations,.includii>g front desk, reservations, and ticket sales.
•> Ensure quality and guest satisfaction.
❖ Good thorough knowledge of scheduling software.
❖ Daily Deposits for all departments

Toys R Us 1 Settlers Green, North Conway, NH
Asst. Mann^ci April 2012 - janunry 2014

❖ Organized private mailbox system using mailbox manager software.
❖ Reported to the district manager regarding all store and staff issues.
❖ Managed staff of 4 sales associates, 2 team leaders.
❖ Hiring staff and making work schedules.
❖ Daily Deposits

Northern Human Services ! Berlin, NH

Housing Coo.'dinator March 1999 - September 20! 1
❖ Planned and coordinated logistics and materials for board meetings, committee meetings

and staff events.

❖ Screened applicant resumes and coordinated both phone and in-person interviews.
❖ 'DrSfted biweekly time sheets for Twelve (12) employees. f
❖ Organized all new hire, security and temporary paperwork.
❖ Had to adhere to state rules and regulations.

❖ Follow state procedures on running a state funded facility.
❖ Follow a tight budget, to keep in state guidelines.
❖ Worked closely with other while keeping an open line of communication.
4* Responsible for working closely with the case managenrent and intake

staff.

❖ Develop, implement and/or supervise programs and services in support
of assigned housing program

❖ Complied wnth state and Federal regulations for eligibility determination
and record-keeping.

❖ Prepared for state and Federal audits and provided regular reports to
superiors and the Board of Directors.

❖ Perform raop coordination, clinician collaboration, crisis prevention, crisis interventions to at

least 15 consumers living with a severe mental illness.

❖ Demonstrates a working knowledge of public social service programs and policies
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Skills:'
Highly Motivated
Flexible

Accurate & Detail Oriented

Excellent Plcinner & Coordinator

Works well under pressure
Pleasant & Professional Demeanor

Team Building
Multi - Line Phone proficiency
Critical Thinker

Project Planning
HIPAA Compliance

Basic knowledge of grant writing
Dependable
New Hampshire Notary

References available upon request
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Gran, wnang and manage™.. • Budge. p„fo™,nce^„dTlXot^g
Innova ,ve soluconsdc problem solvng . Capacity, building ' ^

Professional presentations ♦ Public spcakine '
^  * Imagination ♦ Determination ♦ Fortitude

P«OfrBL<fc\Hrt7\A]L KyPi^HflElvrF
Tri-toan*y Community AcUon Programs, lac.
t^hicf lixecniH'c Officer
Berlin. IVH 20I8 .

Tri-Counly tommunUT Aegi„„ Programs, Inr.
1-nicf Operating Officer
Berlin, «?II 2016 - 2018

« ' 'r "t" ~supervision ofDivision D^ectors, ovcre
and budget performance- tactical oversight of nrn resources, revenues, expenditure.s
goals; develop and implemTnr to tn nC" d'
and fiscal performance-oversee and lead soeci^l "j' P^^ois and overall agtmcy programCommuni' Needs Ass;ss,!Lr pmc^'and ̂ trrh's^m M "
service initiatives. Ptovide tactical guidance to Division D- ' ^"ag^onent Team to develop new
in the daily operations of programs. u'octor.s to trouble shoot issues atid problems

Tri|CoutHy C«mmuni(, Ar«„„ Programs. Inc. *
U.v,s.o„ Direelor: TCCAP Preveaiioo Serviees
Bstrlm. i\U 2015-20ie
Responsible for four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Pteventi, n S -
division resources revenupc and #»vr,^r^rUr j 1 revcntion Services; oversee
programs to mee,'„r ecceed'agcncv f-fi 7' Performance; general oversight of
- support programs, ^ gfants
and agency; develop fundraising and markemg strangles ft7nr statements for funders
participadon In state and local initiatives telatire to Droimam/d' through
cohabotate wntb stakeholders and elected

Tri-Coonly Community Aciion Programs, Inc

statements for funders anTparem Senr '-o ^
monitor budget performance and procres's to^^d resources, revenues and expenditures, and
programs to LL coZZc^^hT T7 "^vocacyLtLstng and mar^s^eS r^ttlmtLrandT^'r'n 7'^
services; represent program in state and fedrral virrim - enhance victim
le^slative testimony; create and present trainings for meTc'aTard kTl'or'ofctf®
and best practices for victim services. professionals on legal standards
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^i-County CoxninimJiy Aeiion Programs, Inc

advota; "'TT -P-- —policies and protocols; create and present communiw o°nr'"h"' ^6®"'=)' systems,
school-based violence prevenrion classes for grades K 12 "or campaigns; presentK  masses tor grades K-12 ; provide on-call coverage of crisis line

ProgramoodOTille, IVew Ilampahire 1999-200J

sysicm, juvenpt scmce officers, local police dcpartm^K 7id d?""'^ relauonshlps bcovecn the coupc«.r, ..p.,,. o. daee^d yo.d.: co™75 t'cThZd -d~'r°° P"!""

S;i:i;;iir.7„.rd:tvii '°°»''"" -»-pp"" ■(™>=pclassroom serfing, sopecvisc poedi lo dally llhng 7ml '"PP"'" ""P "'p' yP"'P "

EdMcaiinw

C^nl^a^:^ <" — BO.SOO. M.

♦  Elected 2006.20WChatrman. ^ ̂^ce of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003. T.^.rer 1996-1998
c-hairman, Haverh.U Area Family Violence Council 1998-2003♦ C^ned PWME FOR LIFE Impaired DnVer Intervention Ptogram Insttuctor #NH16,9C|

♦ lloM Trainer in the State of New Hampshire
.  2008-2012
♦ BcthJehcm Conservation Commission 2006 - cftmnf
^ Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 201J-2012

TCCAP; Commendation- Division Director Award, 2011
BethJehem Citizen's Advisor)'Committee on Rccyding 2007-2010♦ Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006

♦ Small Business Owner r Aurora Energies 2015-cumnt
♦ Speakeasy Trio Jaaz Vocalist/ Sweet Jamm Swing Band Jaea Vocalist 1997- ot™,

Member, Untted States Ftgute Skating Association/international Skating Institute curnn, si„„ 1993


